

Oklahoma Horse Show Association Handbook

Contents

General Rules	2
Exhibitor Conduct	4
Shows, Exhibitor Levels, Classes & Rules	5
Shows	5
Exhibitor Levels	5
Class Divisions	
Classes	10
Points & Awards	11
Point Configuration for Show High Points and Year End	11
Point Calculation for Year End Awards	12
Year End Award Qualifications	12
Special Shows/Classes	15

General Rules

The Oklahoma Horse Show Association, whose official abbreviation is OkHSA, is a non- profit organization whose purpose is to promote good horsemanship, horse husbandry, and sportsmanship through horse shows, trail rides, and other events. OkHSA will uphold its Articles of Constitution, By Laws, and Rules to its absolute best ability.

- OkHSA and the OkHSA Show Committee will not be held responsible for any loss, injury, damage, or debts in connection with any show or event.
- Exhibitors must be an OkHSA Member to compete for Show High Point Awards and Year End Awards.
 Points accumulated by an exhibitor before their membership is filed will not count towards any awards.
- Horses Are Not required to be registered with any breed association to show or participate at any OkHSA shows or events.
- Any breeds and types of horses can show and participate in all OkHSA shows and events.
- Current Negative Coggins of all horses at the event facility must be presented to the Show Office Staff immediately upon arrival at every show.
- Upon check-in, you must leave an open check, or pay your show bill in full. Entries that are not accompanied with an open check, or paid in full will not be included in the class lists on the gate sheets.
- OkHSA will follow the most recent AQHA Handbook rules on all illegal equipment, V10204.13.
- OkHSA will follow the most recent AQHA Handbook rules on Western and English Show Equipment.
- OkHSA will follow the most recent AQHA Handbook rule of Prohibited Medication, Drug, and Substance.
 - If the OkHSA Show Committee or any OkHSA Officer or Board Member suspects a horse of the above violation, those officials will meet with the rest of the OkHSA Show Committee, Officers, and Board Members present at the event to discuss horse in question. If deemed necessary OkHSA has the right to have a licensed veterinarian take a blood sample of the horse in question for lab work. This lab work will be at the expense of the horse owner.
 - If the horse's in question lab work shows a positive result of the above violation, the owner and the exhibitor of that horse will be banned from all OkHSA events and lose any and all points the horse, owner, or exhibitor may have earned.
- OkHSA will follow the most recent AQHA Handbook rule of Conditionally Permitted Therapeutic Medication.
- All Dogs must be on leashes while at the Show and event Facility.
- A Youth Exhibitor's age is determined by their age as of January 1 of the current year.
- Stallions of any age must have a handler of 19 years of age or older. Youth exhibitors 18 years of age and younger are not allowed to handle or ride a stallion of any age.
 - For Halter classes, Stallions will be combined with Geldings for Amateur exhibitors, otherwise Stallions will be shown in the Open Halter classes.
- Exhibitor numbers will be assigned for every horse/rider combination. A new number will be assigned at each show. All points will be tracked by horse/rider combination. If you have multiple numbers for different exhibitors or horses, and you enter the ring with the wrong number, you will be disqualified from that class. We will not just update the number in the records after the fact.

- Exhibitor numbers must be pinned to the exhibitor's back for halter, showmanship, and in-hand classes. Exhibitor numbers must be pinned on each side of your saddle pad for riding classes. OkHSA provides 2 copies of the number. If exhibitor numbers are not properly displayed as stated above, the exhibitor will be disqualified from the class.
- Exhibitors who pre-enter via online entries must check in at the show office, prior to their first class, to review and sign their entry form, provide proof of current negative coggins, and either leave an open check, or pay their bill in full.
- If paying with cash, your show bill must be paid in full and closed; cash payment is not considered an 'open show bill'.
- Once you have paid in full and closed your show bill, you will be added to the 'No Add List' for the gate workers.
- OkHSA WILL NOT REFUND ANY CLASSES ONCE THE SHOW BILL HAS BEEN PAID AND CLOSED. The only
 way to add and scratch classes throughout the day is to leave an open check.
- Adding classes: Exhibitors may add classes at the gate, if they have an open show bill. If their show bill has been closed, they must go to the office to add any more classes and provide payment.
- Scratching classes: Exhibitors must scratch any class before that class has started entering the ring.
 Scratches are accepted in the office, or at the gate. Any classes not properly scratched will still be charged.
- Exhibitors who do not close out their show bill properly by the end of the show will be charged an additional \$10 office fee.
- When a Walk Trot Youth, Walk Trot Amateur, Novice Youth, or Novice Amateur OkHSA Member wins a Year-End All Around High Point, that exhibitor will be required to move up a level, unless an exemption is granted by the OkHSA Show Committee, Officers, and Board Members.

Exhibitor Conduct

- OkHSA has a Zero Tolerance Policy for disrespectful or un-sportsman like behavior towards or from any exhibitor, member, judge, or spectator.
- At any time while at the show or event facility, if an OkHSA Officer or Board Member sees any disrespectful or un-sportsman like behavior from anyone, that official will meet with the rest of the OkHSA Show Committee, Officers, and Board Members present at the event to discuss person in question. If deemed necessary OkHSA has the right to have that person removed from the facility.
- If the person being removed from the facility is an exhibitor in the show, that exhibitor MUST pay their entire show bill in full for that entire show even if they are removed before they have shown in all their classes entered. This exhibitor will not be awarded any points they may have earned at that show.
- If an exhibitor or associated person is being disrespectful and hostile towards any show staff regarding placings, points, high point results, etc. at the end of the show, they/associated exhibitor will forfeit any awards/points from the entire show day. This includes voicing aggression regarding the timing of finalizing results at the conclusion of the show.
- If a person other than an OkHSA Officer, Board Member, or Show Committee Member sees any disrespectful or un-sportsman like behavior, that person must inform an OkHSA Officer, Board Member, or Show Committee Member so these officials can handle the situation as needed.
- Under No Circumstances may an exhibitor talk to a judge during the show about their placing, ride, pattern, or anything else. A judge may approach an exhibitor to offer feedback at their discretion.
- If an exhibitor approaches and talks to a judge before, during, or after a class, that exhibitor will be disqualified from that class. If an exhibitor is disqualified from more than two classes for talking to the judge before, during, or after their class/classes that exhibitor will be disqualified from that entire show and will not be awarded any points they may have earned.
- If an exhibitor is disqualified from the show, that exhibitor MUST pay their entire show bill including the classes they have entered after their point of disqualification.
- Exhibitors may talk to the judge if they are done showing in the classes they have entered and have paid their show bill in full. Once they have spoken to the judge they cannot enter any more classes.
- If an exhibitor has a concern about the judge, that exhibitor will need to find an OkHSA Show Committee Member, Officer, or Board Member to express their concern. That officer or Board Member will handle the situation as needed.
- OkHSA has a Zero Tolerance Policy towards any inhumane treatment of animals.
- OkHSA abides by the Inhumane Treatment Section of the most recent AQHA Handbook.
- If at any time while at the show or event facility, an OkHSA Officer, Board Member, or Show Committee Member sees any inhumane treatment from anyone, that official will meet with the rest of the OkHSA Show Committee, Officers, and Board Members present at the event to discuss person in question. If deemed necessary OkHSA has the right to have that person removed from the facility. That person will also be banned from all OkHSA events.
- If the person being removed from the facility is an exhibitor in the show, that exhibitor MUST pay their entire show bill in full for that entire show even if they are removed before they have shown in all their classes entered. This exhibitor will not be awarded any points they may have earned at that show.
- If a person other than an OkHSA Officer, Board Member, or Show Committee Member sees any inhumane treatment, that person must inform an OkHSA Officer, Board Member, or Show Committee Member so these officials can handle the situation as needed.

Shows, Exhibitor Levels, Classes & Rules

Shows

- Each OkHSA show will consist of 2 arenas ran separately and simultaneously.
 - 'Main Arena' will begin showing with class "1. Open Halter" under the 'Main Arena Class List'
 - 'Ranch Arena' will begin showing with class "1. Open Ranch Halter" under the 'Ranch Arena Class List'
 - Exhibitors are not prohibited from showing in both arenas, HOWEVER, it is at the exhibitors discretion to keep track of each show's progress and determine if they can make all their classes. There will be absolutely <u>NO GATE HOLDS</u> if an exhibitor is still competing in the other arena when their class is starting. Any classes that an exhibitor is entered in will still be charged if the exhibitor misses the class. If the progress of each show starts to conflict with classes that an exhibitor is entered in both arenas, it is the exhibitors responsibility to decide which classes they will compete in, and properly scratch the classes they will not show. Scratches can be made at the gate for that class's arena, or in the office. (Main classes must be scratched at the Main Arena gate or in the office; Ranch classes must be scratched at the Ranch Arena gate or in the office). Classes must be scratched 2 classes ahead to avoid the class fee being charged.
 - Show Fees are determined by the acting Board of Directors each year, and are generally posted on the current year's Show Bill, OkHSA website, or similar place.
 - In regards to class fees, there is a discount on class fees for current OkHSA members. Class fees are designated as 'Member Class Fees' and 'Non-member Class Fees'.
 - There is a distinction between 'Exhibitor Level' and 'Class Division (Division)'. Exhibitor Level refers to the exhibitor's skill and abilities. Exhibitor level must be designated solely on the exhibitor's abilities, and not the condition of their horse. Class Division refers to a grouping of classes by level and discipline. Both are explained in detail below.

Exhibitor Levels

OkHSA offers 7 different levels for exhibitors to compete in.

Open Level

The Open Level is open to exhibitors of any age who display expert riding skills and abilities. If an exhibitor is classified in the Open Level, then this is the only level they may compete in. Open is the only level a Trainer or Judge can compete in. An exhibitor is considered a "Trainer" when they have accepted compensation for the training of, or the assistant training of, a horse within the last 3 years. An exhibitor is considered a "Judge" when they have accepted compensation for judging any show within the past 3 years.

Amateur Level

- The Amateur Level is open to adults 19 years of age (as of January 1 of the current year) and older, who display advanced riding skills and abilities. This level is for seasoned/accomplished exhibitors who have not accepted compensation for showing, judging, training, or assistant training of a horse within the last 3 years. OkHSA follows the most recent AQHA Handbook on Amateur Eligibility Rules.
- Exhibitors in the Amateur Level may also compete in the Open Level.

Novice Amateur Level

- The Novice Amateur Level is open to adults 19 years of age (as of January 1 of the current year) and older who display moderate/less advanced riding skills and abilities. The Novice Amateur Level is for exhibitors that have just began to show at the lope, and/or are not a seasoned/accomplished exhibitor.
- Exhibitors in the Novice Amateur Level may also compete in the Amateur and Open Levels.

W/T (Walk/Trot) Amateur Level

- The W/T Amateur Level is open to adults 19 years of age (as of January 1 of the current year) and older who display beginner riding skills and abilities. The W/T Amateur Level is for exhibitors who are not comfortable or have not gained the skills necessary to ride a horse at the lope. Exhibitors may not cross between walk/trot and loping/canter levels at the same show. Once they have moved up to a loping/canter level, they may not return to the walk/trot level.
- Exhibitors in the W/T Amateur Level are not allowed to compete in any other level, however, they are allowed to show in Open, Amateur and Novice Amateur Showmanship (since showmanship is not a riding class).

Youth Level

- The Youth Level is open to youth 18 years of age (as of January 1 of the current year) and younger who display advanced riding skills and abilities. The Youth Level is for seasoned/accomplished exhibitors who have not accepted compensation for showing, judging, training, or assistant training of a horse within the last 3 years.
- Exhibitors in the Youth Level may also compete in the Open Level.

Novice Youth Level

- The Novice Youth Level is open to youth 18 years of age (as of January 1 of the current year) and younger who display moderate/less advanced riding skills and abilities. The Novice Youth Level is for exhibitors that have just began to show at the lope, and/or are not a seasoned/accomplished exhibitor.
- Exhibitors in the Novice Youth Level may also compete in the Youth and Open Levels.

W/T (Walk/Trot) Youth Level

- The W/T Youth Level is open to youth 18 years of age (as of January 1 of the current year) and younger who display beginner riding skills and abilities. The W/T Youth Level is for exhibitors who are not comfortable or have not gained the skills necessary to ride a horse at the lope. Exhibitors may not cross between walk/trot and loping/canter levels at the same show. Once they have moved up to a loping/canter level, they may not return to the walk/trot level.
- Exhibitors in the W/T Youth Level are not allowed to compete in any other level, however, they are allowed to show in Open, Youth and Novice Youth Showmanship (since showmanship is not a riding class).

Leadline/Challenged Rider Level

• The Leadline/Challenged Rider Level and class (31. Leadline & Challenged Rider) is for leadliner exhibitors ages 6 and under, and any challenged riders.

Exhibitor Levels are based solely on the rider's skill level, not the horse. OkHSA Operates on the Honesty System. When designating your Level, please be honest about your riding skills and abilities.

- If at any time during the show season the OkHSA Show Committee, Officers, and Board Members have decided that an exhibitor has selected a level that is lower than their riding or showing skills, that exhibitor will be moved into the correct level, unless an exemption has been requested by the exhibitor and granted by OkHSA Officers and Board Members.
- If an exhibitor must be moved into a higher level, that exhibitor will lose all points they have earned in the level they are being removed from.
- Each exhibitor must complete an 'Exhibitor Registration Form' to designate which level they are competing in for that year. This form will also serve as the 'Membership Form' if an exhibitor also wishes to become a member to be eligible for points/awards.
 - You must be a current member of OkHSA to be eligible for show High Point awards, as well as year-end awards. Exhibitor Levels will either be posted near the show office for members to verify which level they are registered in, or they may confirm their level during check in.
 <u>Exhibitors are responsible for ensuring they are registered in the correct level for Show High Point and year-end calculations!</u>
- If an exhibitor wins a year-end High Point award in any division (main or ranch) associated with their designated exhibitor level, that exhibitor will be expected to move up a level for the next show year. This pertains to Walk/Trot and Novice levels. If an exhibitor requires an exception, health related or otherwise, to remain in a lower level, they must submit a written request to the OkHSA Board explaining their request. Requests to remain in a lower level due to their horse's abilities will not be considered.

Class Divisions

OkHSA offers classes in 14 different Class Divisions (Divisions) – 7 traditional divisions of classes ran in the Main Arena, and 7 Ranch divisions of classes ran in the Ranch Arena.

Open Division

 The Open Division consists of Open Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, Reining and Trail classes. This Class Division is available to exhibitors in the Open, Amateur, Novice Amateur, Youth, and Novice Youth exhibitor levels only.

Amateur Division

 The Amateur Division consists of Amateur Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, Reining and Trail classes Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, Reining and Trail classes. This Class Division is available to adult exhibitors in the Amateur and Novice Amateur exhibitor levels only.

Novice Amateur Division

 The Novice Amateur Division consists of Novice Amateur Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, Reining and Trail classes. This Class Division is available to adult exhibitors in the Novice Amateur exhibitor level only.

W/T Amateur Division

 The W/T Amateur Division consists of W/T Amateur Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, and Trail classes. This Class Division is available to adult exhibitors in the W/T Amateur exhibitor level only.

Youth Division

 The Youth Division consists of Youth Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, Reining and Trail classes. This Class Division is available to youth exhibitors in the Youth and Novice Youth exhibitor levels only.

Novice Youth Division

 The Novice Youth Division consists of Novice Youth Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, Reining and Trail classes. This Class Division is available to youth exhibitors in the Novice Youth exhibitor level only.

W/T Youth Division

 The W/T Youth Division consists of W/T Youth Halter, Showmanship, English and Western discipline, and Trail classes. This Class Division is available to youth exhibitors in the W/T Youth exhibitor level only.

Open Ranch Division

 The Open Ranch Division consists of Open Ranch Halter, Ranch Pleasure, Ranch Riding and Ranch Trail classes. This Class Division is available to exhibitors in the Open, Amateur, Novice Amateur, Youth, and Novice Youth exhibitor levels only.

Amateur Ranch Division

- The Amateur Ranch Division consists of Amateur Ranch Halter, Ranch Pleasure, Ranch Riding and Ranch Trail classes. This Class Division is available to adult exhibitors in the Amateur and Novice Amateur exhibitor levels only.
 - Halter classes are combined for Amateur, Novice Amateur, and W/T Amateur, to one class called 'Amateur Halter'. Exhibitors will get any points accumulated in the combined halter classes counted towards the Division High Point they are competing for.

Novice Amateur Ranch Division

- The Novice Amateur Ranch Division consists of Novice Amateur Ranch Halter, Ranch Pleasure, Ranch Riding and Ranch Trail classes. This Class Division is available to adult exhibitors in the Novice Amateur exhibitor level only.
 - Halter classes are combined for Amateur, Novice Amateur, and W/T Amateur, to one class called 'Amateur Ranch Halter Geldings/Stallions' and one called 'Amateur Ranch Halter Mares'. Exhibitors will get any points accumulated in the combined halter classes counted towards the Division High Point they are competing for.

W/T Amateur Ranch Division

- The W/T Amateur Ranch Division consists of W/T Amateur Ranch Halter, Ranch Pleasure, Ranch Riding and Ranch Trail classes. This Class Division is available to adult exhibitors in the W/T Amateur and exhibitor level only.
 - Halter classes are combined for Amateur, Novice Amateur, and W/T Amateur to one class called 'Amateur Ranch Halter Geldings/Stallions' and one called 'Amateur Ranch Halter Mares'. Exhibitors will get any points accumulated in the combined halter classes counted towards the Division High Point they are competing for.

Youth Ranch Division

 The Youth Ranch Division consists of Youth and Novice Youth Ranch Halter, Ranch Pleasure, Ranch Riding and Ranch Trail classes. This Class Division is available to youth exhibitors in the Youth and Novice Youth exhibitor levels only.

Novice Youth Ranch Division

- The Novice Youth Ranch Division consists of Youth and Novice Youth Ranch Halter, Ranch Pleasure, Ranch Riding and Ranch Trail classes. This Class Division is available to youth exhibitors in the Youth and Novice Youth exhibitor levels only.
 - Halter classes are combined for Youth, Novice Youth, and W/T Youth to one class called 'Youth Ranch Halter Geldings' and one called 'Youth Ranch Halter Mares'. Exhibitors will get any points accumulated in the combined halter classes counted towards the Division High Point they are competing for.

W/T Youth Ranch Division

- The W/T Youth Ranch Division consists of W/T Youth Ranch Halter, Ranch Pleasure, Ranch Riding and Ranch Trail classes. This Class Division is available to youth exhibitors in the W/T Youth exhibitor level only.
 - Halter classes are combined for Youth, Novice Youth, and W/T Youth to one class called 'Youth Ranch Halter Geldings' and one called 'Youth Ranch Halter Mares'. Exhibitors will get any points accumulated in the combined halter classes counted towards the Division High Point they are competing for.

Exhibitors in the W/T Amateur and W/T Youth levels are restricted to W/T classes as referenced in the 'Exhibitor Levels' section, however they are allowed to compete in Open halter classes and Open, Amateur, Youth, Novice Amateur and Novice Youth showmanship classes (non-riding classes).

For a list of the classes that count towards the High Point awards in each Class Division, see the 'Points & Awards' section of this handbook.

[Exhibitor Levels*								
-	Open	Amateur	Novice Amateur	W/T Amateur	Youth	Novice Youth	W/T Youth		
Open Classes	\checkmark	✓	✓		\checkmark	✓			
Amateur Classes		✓	✓						
Novice Amateur Classes			✓						
W/T Amateur Classes				✓					
Youth Classes					\checkmark	✓			
Novice Youth Classes						✓			
W/T Youth Classes							✓		
Open Ranch Classes	\checkmark	✓	✓		\checkmark	✓			
Amateur Ranch Classes		✓	✓						
Novice Amateur Ranch Classes			✓						
W/T Amateur Ranch Classes				✓					
Youth Ranch Classes					\checkmark	✓			
Novice Youth Ranch Classes						✓			
W/T Youth Ranch Classes							✓		
Open W/T Classes	\checkmark	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓		
Green Horse Classes	\checkmark	✓	✓		✓	✓			
Flashy Coat	\checkmark	✓	✓	✓	\checkmark	✓	✓		

*This graph <u>only</u> represents the classes that an exhibitor can enter, based on their level. For a list of which classes apply to the High Point Awards, please see the 'Year-End Award Qualifications' section in this handbook.

- There are Open W/T classes available that allow for 'schooling' or practice for exhibitors that are not in the W/T levels. These classes are open to everyone and do not count towards any high point awards.
- Green Horse classes are available for horses that have been shown in 4 shows or less, and have not earned any money.
- W/T exhibitors are not allowed to show in Green Horse classes, as there will be loping.
- Flashy Coat is a halter-style class open to every type of horse and exhibitor. The class is judged on the horse's coat, color, and markings.
 - Not one coat pattern or color of coat is superior to another. Horses with white markings are not superior to horses with no white markings, or solid horses. Flashy Coat is strictly placed on the judge's own personal preference of coat color and coat pattern.
 - Flashy Coat does not count towards any Show High Point Awards, or Year-End All-Around Award. The Flashy Coat class will have a Class Year End Award only.
- Horses can show in Western Pleasure, Ranch Pleasure and Ranch Riding.
 - Silver tack, hoof polish, and banded manes are allowed BUT discouraged against in Ranch Riding.

Points & Awards

- You must be a current OkHSA member to qualify for and receive any awards.
- If awards are not picked up the day of the show, you must submit an awards request on the website (<u>www.okhsa.com/awards-contact</u>) within <u>10 business days</u> after the show to coordinate a time to pick them up. If you do not submit a request within the timeframe, the awards will be forfeited.
- Points accumulated prior to being a current OKHSA member will not count towards any awards.
 Current membership must be filed prior to competing in any classes to receive points.
- All points are calculated by exhibitor/horse combination (referred to as an Entry)
 - For example, an exhibitor has 2 horses they compete with. Exhibitor with Horse A is considered one entry and is assigned a unique entry/back number for each show. Exhibitor with Horse B is considered another entry, which is also assigned a unique entry/back number for each show.
 - Likewise, two exhibitors competing with one horse is treated the same. Exhibitor A with the horse is one entry and assigned a unique entry/back number for each show, and Exhibitor B is another entry and assigned a unique entry/back number for each show.
 - Just the same, if two exhibitors are showing 2 horses, each of those is considered one entry: Entry #1 – Exhibitor A & Horse A
 Entry #3 – Exhibitor B & Horse A
 - Entry #2 Exhibitor A & Horse B Entry #4 Exhibitor B & Horse B
- Youth and Amateur Halter classes are combined into the same class for the purpose of individual Show High Point Awards and Year-End All-Around Champions. The combined halter classes will count towards each High Point accordingly.
 - For example, points earned by Novice Youth Exhibitors in the Youth Halter classes, will go towards the Novice Youth Show High Point Award and the Year End Novice Youth All Around, and the points received by Youth Exhibitors in the same class will go towards the Youth Show High Point Award and the Year End Youth All Around.
 - In the event that a Novice Youth or Novice Amateur Exhibitor also qualifies for and is also competing in the Youth or Amateur Level, the points earned by these exhibitors will be awarded to them for both Show High Point Awards and Year-End All-Around Awards.
 - For the purpose of individual class Year End Awards, these classes are considered one class therefore receiving year-end points for that one class alone.
- You must compete in a Halter class for your respective division in order to be eligible for High Point. This includes show High Points, and year-end.

Point Configuration for Show High Points and Year End

Points will be awarded to current OkHSA members based on the number of exhibitors in the:

	Number of Exhibitors in Class							
	1	2	3	4	5	6 or More		
1 st Place	2	3	4	5	6	7		
2 nd Place	-	2	3	4	5	6		
3 rd Place	-	-	2	3	4	5		
4 th Place	-	-	-	2	3	4		
5 th Place	-	-	-	-	2	3		
6 th Place	-	-	-	-	-	2		
Participant Point (P)	1	1	1	1	1	1		
Disqualified (DQ)	1	1	1	1	1	1		

 Ties will be resolved by 1.) Most 1st Place wins, 2.) Most 1st and 2nd Place wins, 3.) Most classes entered in the division.

Point Calculation for Year End Awards

- Points will be kept track of in each class according to the Point Calculation for Show High Point. These
 points will be added together to determine the winner of each individual class, as well as the Year End
 High Point awards.
- Ties will be resolved by 1.) Most 1st Place wins, 2.) Most 1st and 2nd Place wins, 3.) Most classes entered (for year-end High Point), 3.) Most times shown in that class (for individual year end award winners).

Year End Award Qualifications

- To qualify for year-end awards, you must compete in the required number of shows during the show year. You can miss no more than 2 shows to still be eligible for awards.
 - 5 shows for the year = 3 show requirement
 - 6 shows for the year = 4 show requirement
 - \circ 7 shows for the year = 5 show requirement
- When a Walk Trot Youth, Walk Trot Amateur, Novice Youth, or Novice Amateur OkHSA Member wins a Year-End All-Around Championship, that exhibitor will be required to move up a level, unless an
- exemption is made by the OkHSA Show Committee, Officers, and Board Members.

Each show and year-end All-Around High Point & Reserve Awards will be awarded in the following divisions:

- Open
- Amateur
- Novice Amateur
- W/T Amateur
- Youth
- Novice Youth
- W/T Youth

- Open Ranch
- Amateur Ranch
- Novice Amateur Ranch
- W/T Amateur Ranch
- Youth Ranch
- Novice Youth Ranch
- W/T Youth Ranch

Individual Class Awards

• Each individual class will have a year-end award presented to the winner and reserve.

All-Around Exhibitor

• To be eligible for the All-Around Exhibitor Award, exhibitors must compete in at least 4 classes at every show held during the year. This can be with one or multiple horses.

Year End Awards

 If you are unable to attend the year-end banquet, you must submit an awards request on the website (<u>www.okhsa.com/awards-contact</u>) within <u>10 business days</u> after the banquet to coordinate a time to pick them up. If you do not submit a request within the timeframe, the awards will be forfeited.

Classes included in each High Point Division are as follows:

<u>Open</u>

- 1. Open Halter
- 8. Open Showmanship
- 15. Open Hunter in Hand
- 24. Open Hunter Under Saddle
- 32. Open Equitation
- 39. Open Hunter Hack
- 47. Open Western Pleasure
- 55. Open Disciplined Rail
- 63. Open Horsemanship
- 70. Open Reining
- 77. Open Trail

Novice Amateur

- 2. Amateur Halter Geldings/Stallions
- 3. Amateur Halter Mares
- 10. Novice Amateur Showmanship
- 17. Novice Amateur Hunter in Hand
- 26. Novice Amateur Hunter Under Saddle
- 34. Novice Amateur Equitation
- 41. Novice Amateur Hunter Hack
- 49. Novice Amateur Western Pleasure
- 57. Novice Amateur Disciplined Rail
- 65. Novice Amateur Horsemanship
- 72. Novice Amateur Reining
- 79. Novice Amateur Trail

<u>Youth</u>

- 4. Youth Halter Geldings
- 5. Youth Halter Mares
- 12. Youth Showmanship
- 19. Youth Hunter in Hand
- 28. Youth Hunter Under Saddle
- 36. Youth Equitation
- 42. Youth Hunter Hack
- 51. Youth Western Pleasure
- 59. Youth Disciplined Rail
- 67. Youth Horsemanship
- 73. Youth Reining
- 81. Youth Trail

W/T Youth

4. Youth Halter Geldings
5. Youth Halter Mares
14. W/T Youth Showmanship
21. W/T Youth Hunter in Hand
30. W/T Youth Hunter Under Saddle
38. W/T Youth Equitation
53. W/T Youth Western Pleasure
61. W/T Youth Disciplined Rail
69. W/T Youth Horsemanship
83. W/T Youth Trail

Amateur

- 2. Amateur Halter Geldings/Stallions
- 3. Amateur Halter Mares
- 9. Amateur Showmanship
- 16. Amateur Hunter in Hand
- 25. Amateur Hunter Under Saddle
- 33. Amateur Equitation
- 40. Amateur Hunter Hack
- 48. Amateur Western Pleasure
- 56. Amateur Disciplined Rail
- 64. Amateur Horsemanship
- 71. Amateur Reining
- 78. Amateur Trail

W/T Amateur

- 2. Amateur Halter Geldings/Stallions
- 3. Amateur Halter Mares
- 11. W/T Amateur Showmanship
- 18. W/T Amateur Hunter in Hand
- 27. W/T Amateur Hunter Under Saddle
- 35. W/T Amateur Equitation
- 50. W/T Amateur Western Pleasure
- 58. W/T Amateur Disciplined Rail
- 66. W/T Amateur Horsemanship
- 80. W/T Amateur Trail

Novice Youth

- 4. Youth Halter Geldings
- 5. Youth Halter Mares
- 13. Novice Youth Showmanship
- 20. Novice Youth Hunter in Hand
- 29. Novice Youth Hunter Under Saddle
- 37. Novice Youth Equitation
- 43. Novice Youth Hunter Hack
- 52. Novice Youth Western Pleasure
- 60. Novice Youth Disciplined Rail
- 68. Novice Youth Horsemanship
- 74. Novice Youth Reining
- 82. Novice Youth Trail

Open Ranch

- 1. Open Ranch Conformation
- 8. Open Ranch Pleasure
- 18. Open Ranch Horsemanship
- 29. Open Ranch Command
- 39. Open Ranch Riding
- 48. Open Ranch Reining
- 57. Open Ranch Trail

Novice Amateur Ranch

- 2. Amateur Ranch Conformation Geldings/Stallions
- 3. Amateur Ranch Conformation Mares
- 12. Novice Amateur Ranch Pleasure
- 22. Novice Amateur Ranch Horsemanship
- 33. Novice Amateur Ranch Command
- 43. Novice Amateur Ranch Riding
- 52. Novice Amateur Ranch Reining
- 61. Novice Amateur Ranch Trail

Youth Ranch

- 4. Youth Ranch Conformation Geldings
- 5. Youth Ranch Conformation Mares
- 14. Youth Ranch Pleasure
- 24. Youth Ranch Horsemanship
- 35. Youth Ranch Command
- 45. Youth Ranch Riding
- 53. Youth Ranch Reining
- 63. Youth Ranch Trail

W/T Youth Ranch

- 4. Youth Ranch Conformation Geldings
 5. Youth Ranch Conformation Mares
 16. W/T Youth Ranch Pleasure
 26. W/T Youth Ranch Horsemanship
 37. W/T Youth Ranch Command
- 47. W/T Youth Ranch Riding
- 65. W/T Youth Ranch Trail

Amateur Ranch

- 2. Amateur Ranch Conformation
- Geldings/Stallions
- 3. Amateur Ranch Conformation Mares
- 11. Amateur Ranch Pleasure
- 21. Amateur Ranch Horsemanship
- 32. Amateur Ranch Command
- 42. Amateur Ranch Riding
- 51. Amateur Ranch Reining
- 60. Amateur Ranch Trail

W/T Amateur Ranch

- 2. Amateur Ranch Conformation
- Geldings/Stallions
- 3. Amateur Ranch Conformation Mares
- 13. W/T Amateur Ranch Pleasure
- 23. W/T Amateur Ranch Horsemanship
- 34. W/T Amateur Ranch Command
- 44. W/T Amateur Ranch Riding
- 62. W/T Amateur Ranch Trail

Novice Youth Ranch

- 4. Youth Ranch Conformation Geldings
- 5. Youth Ranch Conformation Mares
- 15. Novice Youth Ranch Pleasure
- 25. Novice Youth Ranch Horsemanship
- 36. Novice Youth Ranch Command
- 46. Novice Youth Ranch Riding
- 54. Novice Youth Ranch Reining
- 64. Novice Youth Ranch Trail

Special Shows/Classes

- Each year the acting OkHSA Board may decide to do a 'Special Show', including but not limited to any of the following:
 - \circ T-Shirt Show
 - Exhibitors will be allowed to show in the current OkHSA t-shirt, along with the standard show attire. If they choose not to show in the t-shirt, regular show attire rules will apply. Exhibitors showing in a t-shirt other than the current year's OkHSA t-shirt will be considered in illegal show attire.
 - Double Pointed Show
 - A double pointed show is a single show where all the points are simply doubled. It is optional to elect for double points, but it must be designated on your show bill at check in. If you elect for double points, it will still only count as 1 show for year-end award qualifications, it is simply an opportunity to accumulate extra points. Generally, the only additional charge would be for the second set of class fees, but this is subject to change by the acting OkHSA board if and when a double pointed show is planned.
 - Example: Class fees: \$120 x 2 = \$240
 Office Fee: \$10
 Stall: \$45
 - o Buckle Series
 - OkHSA may designate a set of shows to be part of a buckle series. No additional fees will apply; however exhibitors must show in every show that is deemed part of the buckle series to be eligible. Points will be combined for the set shows, and a buckle will be awarded to the winner of each Class Division for that series.
 - Jackpot Classes
 - OkHSA may elect to do random jackpot classes at a show. Unless otherwise specified, these classes would coincide with a class on the regular show bill. An additional entry fee would be required to participate in the jackpot, and payout/awards for the jackpot will be announced.